MINUTES

City of Newport Planning Commission Work Session Newport City Hall Council Chambers by Video Conference January 11, 2021 6:00 p.m.

- **Planning Commissioners Present by Video Conference:** Jim Patrick, Lee Hardy, Bob Berman, Jim Hanselman, Bill Branigan, and Gary East.
- PC Citizens Advisory Committee Members Present by Video Conference: Dustin Capri, Braulio Escobar, and Greg Sutton.
- City Staff Present by Video Conference: Community Development Director (CDD) Derrick Tokos; and Executive Assistant, Sherri Marineau.
- 1. Call to Order. Chair Patrick called the Planning Commission work session to order at 6:00 p.m.
- 2. <u>Unfinished Business</u>. No discussion was heard.
- A. Initial Review of Land Use Code Amendments to Implement HB 2001 Duplex, Townhouse, and Cottage Cluster Standards. Tokos continued the review of the draft code from the last Commission meeting. Berman asked if there were any added changes based on the last meeting. Tokos confirmed there weren't any changes. He then reviewed the chapter 14.31 for townhouse and cottage clusters next.

Berman asked if a 4,000 square foot lot in the in R-1 zone could only have a house placed on it, not a duplex. Tokos explained that a 4,000 square foot lot was substandard but this did happen. They would be able to have a duplex and this would be dealt with under the provisions for sub-standard lots. Tokos explained that this was reviewed by the Commission on the December 14th work session. A duplex could be done in this scenario but not a townhouse. A discussion ensued regarding building code requirements for firewalls between townhouse common walls.

Tokos continued his review of the updates to minimum lot sizes, off-street parking, and unit size for townhomes and cottage clusters. He noted the 1,400 square footage maximum unit size was a recommendation in the model code for cottage clusters. Berman asked Capri if he thought this was a reasonable number for a maximum unit size. Capri thought it was reasonable but didn't know the exact logic behind the number.

Escobar asked what a community building was. Tokos explained it was a common building for a cottage cluster that was a common place to gather or a storage area. Hanselman asked if the community building size have any bearing on the open space courtyard requirements for cottage clusters, or was it just a community building and not an open space at all. Tokos explained it wasn't an open space at all. The reason they were included in the average floor area calculation was because they didn't want them to be too large. Branigan asked if the community building was required to have running water and bathroom facilities. Tokos didn't know if there were any requirements for what the components of the community building must have but guessed a storage building could be considered a community building. Capri didn't think the uses would match and thought the building code would require this. Berman asked if they were saying a maximum average lower area for a cottage cluster could mean that there could be units that were larger than 1,400 square feet as long as there were units smaller than that. Tokos confirmed this was correct and reminded that this would be an allowance. Nobody would have to proceed with a development of this nature. They could if they met the parameters.

Tokos reviewed the townhouse design standards next. Berman asked if Section A.1, 2, 3 and 4 were "and" or "or" requirements. Tokos explained that all of these standards needed to be met.

Tokos reviewed the diagrams that were referenced in the code. He then reviewed the requirements for the main orientation to units, the main entrance facing common open spaces, the main entrance opening onto a porches, and the windows. Tokos noted that these were done so there was a clear and objective path for approval. Berman asked if the design requirements were new for the city. Tokos confirmed they were new. He thought they should also consider guidelines for multifamily because they were only looking at middle housing currently. Berman though it would be quite an undertaking to do multifamily. Tokos noted this would mean larger buildings that had more mass you would have more of an argument that some of these architectural features should be built into the development. He explained that what they were looking at currently was for the middle housing model code from HB 2001, and was specific to townhouses and cottage clusters. Berman asked if the design standards were required. Tokos confirmed they weren't and noted the Commission expressed a desire to see the language at a prior meeting and was why it was presented here. They didn't have to adopt or pursue it. Berman thought it might be better to defer this until they could do a comprehensive discussion of design standards for anything above a duplex. Tokos thought another approach they could take was if they liked the concepts they could go ahead with this because it dealt with townhouses in a comprehensive way, and then double back and tackle multifamily because there would be different issues with them. Hanselman asked if these design standards would be citywide. Tokos confirmed they would. Capri noted that he didn't like the design standards for Nye Beach as an architect. The standards did help as a developer to make sure it wasn't one big blank three story wall with a door on it and a shed protecting the entry. What Capri did like about the Nye Beach standards was they could hit a couple of things to satisfy the requirement and still have enough flexibility with the design. Capri felt these standards felt pretty reasonable in that way. He noted he didn't like standards saying exactly where they had to put an entry and how big a porch needed to be. Tokos didn't think the window requirement of 15 percent coverage was burdensome threshold, and it did eliminate the chance of having a massive wall facing a street.

Tokos reviewed the driveway access and parking design requirements next. Berman asked what happened to the 20 foot garage setback in these requirements. Tokos explained the 20 foot setback would apply to this but what they were talking about here was the garage width being 12 feet wide, not the garage setbacks. Hardy thought a 12 foot garage width was small and didn't make sense. Tokos didn't think 12 foot wide was small for a single bay garage. Hardy thought it was when you considered what went into garages such as storage. Tokos explained that in a typical townhouse, such as Neola Point, you would see a deeper single bay garage. Hardy noted that the garages at Neola Point were so small you couldn't get out of your car. She worked with Neola Point and this was why they had so many parking issues. Hanselman asked if a window in the garage door would be calculated toward the 15 percent. Tokos noted it was listed in the code that a window in a door or garage could count toward it. Patrick noted the code said the garage couldn't be more than 12 feet wide, not the garage door. Tokos confirmed this. Berman reminded that this standard was for when the garage was on the front.

Tokos reviewed the diagram on the cottage cluster design standards next. Branigan asked if there was a minimum size for a common building in a cottage cluster. Tokos didn't think this was in the code but was more of a provision of the Building Code requirements. He explained that right now, under the draft code, they had cottage clusters programed in to the R-3 and R-4 zones, not in R-1 and R-2. As long as they were full dwelling units, they could have a number of tiny homes as cottages and put them around a common courtyard or commons building that had some amenities.

Tokos reviewed the common courtyard design standards next. Berman asked if they could reduce the 75 percent impervious requirement number. Tokos confirmed they could. Berman wanted to see this as 25 percent or the minimum required to have the concrete pad. Hanselman wanted to see this reduced dramatically as well. Tokos would look closer at the OSU student housing project as an example to see what options there were. Capri asked if the logic was to not see someone just put down grass seed and calling it good. Tokos explained that common courtyards could just be a landscape area but they would have to have pedestrian pads. He would look at other approaches. Capri asked if this had to be the measure on how to judge the quality of the courtyard space. He suggested it could say they had to provide outdoor space that is functional for people to gather. Tokos thought this was too discretionary and they needed clear and objective standards. Capri suggested requiring one

seating area per unit. Tokos didn't think they would want to ratchet it down so low that they couldn't create hardscape or a patio seating area. He thought maybe 50 percent made sense and he would take a look at what was out there. Branigan asked if there were any requirements for accessibility. Tokos reported that this fell under the Building Code for ADA standards. Sutton reported that pavers could be pervious and there were different options.

Tokos reviewed the community building design standards next. Patrick asked where the maximum 900 square foot limitation came from. Tokos would take a look at this and report back. He reviewed the requirements for pedestrian access for cottage clusters, and windows next. Tokos noted he would be fixing this. He then looked at parking designs for cottage clusters and noted they were trying to avoid large parking mass.

Hanselman noted that the standards said that cottage clusters needed to be less than 900 square feet. Patrick noted this was just the footprint. The cottages could be two stories and larger than 900 square feet. Tokos covered the access and deed covenants for cottage clusters, and the subdivision process and planned destination resorts language.

Tokos asked if the Commissioners had any thoughts relative to Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs). Legally they were required to allow one ADU for each single family detached on a lot. It was set up to allow one ADU to a single family attached. Tokos noted that what he was hearing was that some Commissioners liked this but others would prefer to not allow more than what was required by law. He asked the Commission where they wanted to go with this. Hanselman thought one ADU per lot was a sticking point for him. He thought they were working on this a year ago and what they were talking about was for long term housing, not short-term rentals (STRs). They were also talking about owner occupancy of the primary residence on the property. Hanselman thought they were always dealing with the concept of owner occupied or owner on the property. He noted that at the last STR Work Group meeting, there were people upset with a house on Spring Street and they thought the ADU wasn't attached to the primary residence. Tokos reported that this ADU was attached to the primary dwelling unit. He clarified that the Oregon legislature mandated that all municipalities had to allow ADUs on each lot that had single family dwellings. The legislature didn't get into if ADUs could be used for rental occupancy. Tokos reported that with HB 2001 they had to implement an early provision for this which said that cities that were requiring off-street parking for owner occupancy in an ADU or principal dwelling as a standard for getting an ADU unit couldn't be done anymore. The only exception to the law was if the ADU was being used for vacation occupancy you could require the ADU to be owner occupied and to have off-street parking. The issue here was that the ADU was 800 square feet or smaller. The city's STR code covered parking space requirements. Tokos noted that if a dwelling was owner occupied it was a homeshare. He didn't expect the STR Work Group would make a recommendation to do any work with this because there wasn't really a need to do anything. The issues with the Spring Street property were outside of this and was more about things such as lack of licensing and the relationship of neighbors. Branigan noted most of the complaints about this property was by the same few people. He felt this was a neighbor spat that was happening.

Berman noted that what they were talking about here was how the Commission felt about allowing ADUs for townhomes or duplexes. Tokos noted the HB 2001 was clear that they had to allow ADUs for properties developed with a single family detached. They didn't have to allow them for duplexes. Hanselman wanted to keep it so that only single family detached dwellings could have ADUs. Capri thought the question was more about if they wanted new housing. Hanselman wanted housing if it was long-term and thought ADUs were a way to provide more worker based housing. Capri disagreed and noted that he worked with Northwest Coastal Housing and the Housing Authority of Lincoln County. Their thoughts were adding doors alleviated the pressure to housing needs, regardless of the type of door. Capri thought the question for the Commission was if they wanted more housing, period. He agreed that there was a housing problem but there was a limit of the number of people who came to the Oregon coast and got into a vacation rental. There wouldn't be more STRs, because there was a cap on the number of licenses. The question was if they wanted more doors for housing. Tokos noted there were caps on STR licenses. Hanselman thought if there were caps on STRs we fulfilled the need by keeping them full. Then, any new ADUs would be long-term rentals because STRs had caps on the licenses. Hanselman thought this meant that ADUs should be reserved for long-term rentals. Berman noted they couldn't control the uses for ADUs, but could control if they were legal or not. He thought R-1 properties

were contrary to the whole intent because they would end up with three families living on one lot. This is what would happen if they allowed ADUs with duplexes. Patrick thought that if they allow an attached ADU to a duplex it would became a triplex and a lot of rules would kick in. He thought the only thing they could allow an ADU on would be detached on a duplex or detached on an apartment building. A discussion ensued regarding the need for ADUs. Capri wanted to see more doors for housing. Braulio thought they should limit the ADUs to the R-1 and not allow them in R-2 or duplexes. Tokos asked if what he was saying was to limit them to properties developed with a single family detached dwelling, which was what they were mandated to allow. Escobar confirmed this was what he was saying. Hanselman preferred it stayed this way. Branigan wanted to see what other municipalities, such as Lincoln City and Florence, were doing to keep rules consistent. Escobar noted they were making something new here and didn't think many municipalities would have any standards yet. Tokos would look into this and bring back an option A and B to the Commission to consider. Patrick didn't have a problem doing just single family. Most of his problem had to do with there being so many constraints having to do with multifamily, triplexes or anything bigger not having the room to do this in first place. Tokos would bring an updated document as a second review on February 8th. This would also be an opportunity to initiate the legislative process.

- B. Updated Planning Commission Work Program. No discussion was heard.
- 3. New Business. No discussion was heard.
- 4. Adjourn. The meeting adjourned at 6:59 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Sherri Marineau, Executive Assistant